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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Judge's house and law office occupy a block on the original town plot of Georgetown 
(drawn up in 1791) bounded by West Market Street on the southeast, North Alley (closed 
for more than a century) on the southwest, Laurel Street on the northwest, and North 
Front Street on the northeast. The section of Georgetown in which the property is 
located contains some of the earliest surviving structures in the town.

The original structure built by Justice Peter Robinson shortly after 1800 appears to 
have been a single-pile side hall plan, two-and-a-half story Federal style house with 
a single-pile, two-bay wing on the southwest end and a single-pile, one-story, three- 
bay wing running out from the rear of the main section of the house. The original 
siding, still visible on the outside of the kitchen wing and in a small portion of the 
first floor rear wall of the house, was wide, horizontal water millsawn beaded weather­ 
board. Remnants of this same type of siding are also found in other structures of the 
same vintage and quality in Sussex County, Delaware.

By the time of Justice Robinson's death in the early 1830's, court records indicate 
that the one story wing on the southwest end of the house had been raised to a full 
two-and-a-half stories, in a five-bay, center hall stye. While this main section of 
the house appears from the street to be a symmetrical late Federal house with some 
Greek Revival detailing, the rear of the house is not entirely symmetrical. It is 
possible from a close examination of the rear of the main section to detect where 
the original one story or one-and-a-half story wing was raised to a full two stories, 
probably during the 1820's.

The structure has undergone other alterations during its history. Most changes were 
made during the mid-19th century, though certain modern alterations have been made as 
well. In the early 1840's, Judge Edward Wooten, Justice Robinson's son-in-law and 
the second owner of the house, carried out an extensive remodelling of the interior 
in Greek Revival style. Hand-hewn cypress shingles, a characteristic siding material 
of 19th century lower Delaware architecture, were applied to the exterior of the main 
five-bay section of the house. The small law office on the property is also shingled
in the same material. Judge Wooten also added one-story, 
flat-roofed porches to the house and the law office.

one-bay Greek Revival

While the kitchen, located at the rear of the rear wing, underwent an unfortunate 
major alteration in the 1950's in which all the original paneling was removed, the 
dining room, situated between the kitchen and the main section, is largely original. 
It possesses many original details including wide pine floorboards, chair-rail 
mouldings, four-paneled doors, and door and window trim. The dining room also retains 
its original arched corner cupboard. Two attic rooms over the kitchen and dining 
room were rendered inaccessible by the removal of an enclosed kitchen stairway in 
the 1950's, except through two small, four-pane gable end windows on the northwest 
gable end of the rear wing. The original kitchen fireplace, said to have been seven 
feet wide, was also closed in during the 1950's. The exterior end chimney is a 
rare (by lower Delaware standards) stuccoed brick chimney nine feet wide at the 
base with a water table and sloped weatherings. The chimney has an arched brick 
hood. The arched hoods are repeated in the two interior end chimneys in the main 
section of the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Judge's house and law office, on West Market Street, one block southwest of 
Georgetown's Public Square and Circle, are significant as the home and office of 
a long line of Delaware judges, government officials, and political leaders. The 
house is architecturally significance as one of the better preserved 19th century 
houses in Georgetown, the county seat of Sussex County, Delaware. The law office, 
though substantially altered, is significant as the last remaining 19th century 
law office in Georgetown. It is perhaps equally significant that the structure 
has been used as nothing but a law office since the date of its construction in 
about 1809 except for several years during the 1960's when it served as the county 
Red Cross headquarters.
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DESCRIPTION (Continued)

The exterior of the rear wing is largely original with original siding, window 
trim, and heavy beaded plank outer doors bolted to inner paneled doors. An "L" shaped 
porch extends along the full length of the rear wing and across the central bay of 
the main house. The section of the porch at the rear of the main house displays 
mortise and tenon construction. That running along the side of the rear wing appears 
later and may have been reconstructed during the early 20th century. The porch in 
its present design appears in a photo of the house taken in 1900.

The roofs of both wings and the main section of the house are covered with modern 
asphalt shingles over earlier wooden shake shingles. Both front and rear slopes of 
the gable roof of the main section contain three symmetrically-placed federal style 
dormers with classical curved pedimented roofs and six-over-six sash windows. The 
gable ends contain small six-light casement windows at each side of the interior 
end chimneys. The windows are shuttered with board»and-batten shutters.

Perhaps the most visible of Judge Wooten's exterior renovations is a one-story 
gable-roofed addition extending out from the northeast gable end of the main section. 
This one-bay wing, which was apparently used as a study through much of the history 
of the house, contains Greek Revival window trim, and a fireplace surround in the 
same style. The fireplace ties into the chimney running up through the main section. 
Another fireplace in the parlor at the northeast end of the main section opens into 
the same chimney as does a third fireplace in the northeast end bedroom on the second 
floor which has been enclosed. Judge Wooten installed ornate Greek Revival mantelpieces 
of gray King-of-Prussia marble around the two first floor fireplaces in the main section 
of the house. Both have Ionic columns supporting the mantelpiece. The baseboards, 
symmetrical window trim, doorways, and other features of the main section date from 
Judge Wooten ! s renovation. The stairway rising from the central hallway to a landing 
and then to the second floor hallway is Greek Revival in design with simple turned 
balusters and a ramped railing where the rail meets the landing and second floor 
hallway posts.

The front doors of both the house and the law office are six-paneled. The 
doorway of the main house has sidelights and a four-light transom. An ornamental 
brass knocker on the door is engraved with the arms of the Lords Baltimore. The 
device was inherited from the ancestral home of General Jesse Green, a descendent 
of the Calvert family. The doorways leading onto the rear porch from the central 
hall of the main section are three-paneled on the interior and planked with beaded 
planks on the exterior. These double doi)rs and the doors leading to the porch from 
the kitchen and dining room in the rear wing appear to be original.

The a'ttic of the main section is partially finished with plaster walls and 
simple wood plank floors and baseboards. A crawl space above the attic gives access
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to the ridge of the roof, where it is possible to see the original morticed and 
tenoned beams on the northeast or older end.

Two second floor six-over-six double hung sash windows fierce the southwest 
gable end, which also contains two attic level six-light casements. Only one 
window appears in the northeast gable end, also at the second floor window level 
at the front corner of the house. The northeast end also contains the two attic 
level windows and a first floor window at the front corner. It is probable that 
both of these windows were cut into the wall during the 181|0 renovation.

Among the more interesting features of the second floor of the house are a 
pair of wrought iron and brass carpenter's locks on doors of adjoining bedrooms 
on the second floor. Although the two rooms, at the southwest end, were originally 
a single larger bedchamber, a dividing wall was put in during Judge Woo ten's 
renovation.. An original single fireplace was converted into two smaller corner 
fireplaces. The lock on the rear bedroom door bears a brass seal emblazoned with 
the arms of Great Britain and the notation that the lock was manufactured during 
the reign of King William IV. The front bedroom door lock seal is emblazoned with 
an American eagle.

Neither the house nor the law office have basements and both sit on brick 
foundations. While the exterior of the small gable roofed law office is relatively 
unaltered, the building has had a modern one-story wing added to the rear. The 
interior of the original two-bay one-story office was extensively altered during 
the 19^0 f s and now possesses virtually no original details.

The grounds also include a small gable-roofed cypress shingled milk house, and 
a small two-bay one room plan house with modern additions which might originally 
have served as a servant's quarters or summer kitchen. While it contains much 
original exterior trim on the front facing Horth Front Street, the structure has 
been extensively altered inside and out. Although included in the site being 
nominated, the structure is not considered important to the nomination because 
of the major alterations it has undergone within the past two decades,

Also located on the site is a fine old boxwood garden which appears to date 
from the mid-19th century*
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA:

75 Degrees 23 Minutes 17 Seconds Longitude 

38 Degrees !;! Minutes 21 Seconds Latitude

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTIONS

The boundaries of the site being nominated begin at the western corner 
of West Market Street and North Front Street. The line runs with West Market 
Street in a southwesterly direction for 252 feet to South Lane and thence in 
a northwesterly direction with South lane for a distance of 155 feet. The 
Line turns northeast 90 degrees and runs northeast for a distance of 252 feet. 
At the interse6tion of the northeasterly line with North Front Street, the 
line turns 90 degrees southeast and runs in a southeasterly direction with 
North Front Street 155 feet to the point of beginning. The nominated area 
is a rectangle of 252 feet by 155 feet and contains 39*060 square feet*
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